



User Manual



panametrics.com

BH076C11 EN A

Table of Contents

Introduction2
System Requirements2
Vitality™ Main Screen3
Main Menu4
Monitoring Data/Error Log4
Connect to Instrument
Units and Access Level
Units8
Access Level
Instrument Operations
Configure
SIL Meters:
Non-SIL Meters
Monitor
LOG
Graph
Signals
Internal Logs
CAL-TRIM-TEST
Error Log
Default Directories

Introduction

The **Vitality**[™] software application enables the users to configure, control, calibrate, monitor, and inspect the flow meters that are based on PanaFlow[™] platforms listed below:

- AT600 (V1.4.x and V1.5.x)
- XMT900 (V2.8.x)
- XMT910 (V1.0.x)
- XMT1000 (V4.1.x, V4.2.x.x, V4.3.x.x and V4.4.x.x)

It extends PanaFlow[™] measurement and data storage capabilities so that users can capture and store measurement and error data in easily accessible formats. Before installing **Vitality[™]**, ensure that your system supports minimum system requirements given below:

System Requirements

Component	Windows Vista	Windows 7/10
Processor	1.33 GHz	1.6 GHz
Memory	2 GB	4 - 8 GB
Available Hard disk Space	1 GB	
Available Ports	USB 1.x/2.x/3.x with USB-F with RS232-RS485 conver	RS485 converter or RS232 ter
Screen Resolution	1280 x 1024	

To run the **Vitality**[™] software, the hardware and software requirements are listed below:

Vitality[™] Main Screen

When you click on the **Vitality**[™] icon, first you see a splash screen, and then the Main Screen opens. The Main Screen enables the user to establish communication with an instrument and then provides access to various functions of **Vitality**[™].



Main Menu

MENU	🕐 HELP	1 ABOUT	
PERATIONS	() «	DNNECT	
Section and the	1.000		

In the upper left of the screen, the Main Menu offers two bars with three functions shown below:

- Help
- About
- Connect

Clicking on **Help** opens the **Help** document.

Clicking on **About** opens a window with the **Vitality**[™] software version and date.

Options allows the users to select whether or not to commit the log history and select the font size of Monitoring Data Pane.

The **Operations** bar enables user to navigate to various functions **Connect, Configure, Monitor, and Signals** etc. within **Vitality**[™]. When you first start the **Vitality**[™], the submenu **Connect** is the function available to the user until connection is established.

Monitoring Data/Error Log

At the bottom left of the screen, two buttons allow you to check **Monitoring Data** and/or the Error Log.



For any error the Error Log flashes in red.

NOTE: The Main Menu and two buttons (**Monitoring Data/Error Log**) appear when the screen opens, and remain visible while the application is running.

Connect to Instrument

To establish a connection to an instrument, click **Connect** menu. The Connect menu opens on the same window. Now, select the type of Instrument Model you need to connect from the drop-down list.

Instrument Model: AT600 v.1.4.1		•		
Instrument Hodel: AT600 v.1.4.1				
Connection Type: Serial RS-485		~		
Communication Port: COM1 Node: 1		~		
Connection Parameters: 115200 Even 8 1		•		
CONNECT TO INSTRUMENT				

After selection of an Instrument Model, the following options are displayed:

- Connection Type
- Communication Port and Node
- Connection Parameters (Baud Rate, Parity, Data Bits, and Stop Bits).

These options enable user to check and ensure **Vitality**[™] parameters are configured correctly. Use the dropdown list and choose the correct parameters.

MERKU 🚱 HELP 🚯 ADOUT		
Instrument Model: XMT1000 v 4 2 8 1	-	
Connection Type: Serial RS-485		
Communication Port: COM4 Node: 2		
COM Port: come		
Node Address: 2		
Connection Parameters: 115200 Even 8 1	·	
CONNECT TO INSTRUMENT		

Once you are sure the software is accurately configured, click the **Connect to Instrument**.

If the connection is successful, the menu item **Connect** and the **Connect to Instrument** toggles to **Disconnect** and **Disconnect from Instrument** respectively and a list of data appears alongside the connection parameters. This information includes the product, product type and product code, and other relevant data depending on the particular instrument.

Note: If Vitality[™] does not connect to the instrument, check the Error Log below the main screen. It will flash red for any errors. One possible cause for a connection error would be forgetting to connect to the power supply.



Also, at the Top of the screen, Main Menu (Menu and Operations) extends (shown below) and offers a number of other functions depending on the instrument. They include:

- **Menu** ribbon displays **Options** apart from the Help and About.
- **Operations** ribbon has the following options:
 - Configure
 - Monitor
 - Signals
 - Internal Logs
 - Cal-Trim-Test

HENU	II OPTIONS	? HELP	1 ABOUT				
PERATIONS		T 🗘	CONFIGURE	14 MONITOR	🔶 SIGNALS	INTERNAL LOOS	CAL-TRIM-TEST

At the bottom right of the screen, a ribbon displays information about the connection status (connected or not connected) and the instrument serial number along with buttons to view Units and Access level. User will also have access to **Monitoring Data** and **Error Log** on the same ribbon.

Units and Access Level



Important: Changing the access level to Service or Factory will change the XMT900 instrument to Safe Mode.

Units

The **Units** allows the user to view or modify the current measurement units. The user shall have appropriate Access Level to modify any measurement units. Click on **Units** to review or change the units of measurement for totalizer, velocity and pressure. List of available Unites depends on the instrument type.

Access Level

The **Access Level** allows the user to check the current **Access Level** (user can also know the current access level with the help of the **Access Level button color** or to select an appropriate **Access Level** if required. Availability of different types of access levels depend on the instrument you choose, see the table below. Each level requires a login password except for the Viewer.

Use the drop-down list to select the appropriate level, enter the password, and click Change Access Level.

The **Access Level** is color coded to allow users to easily identify the current access level. The color code configuration follows as below:

Instrument Type	User Access Level	Color Identifier
AT600	Viewer	Viewer
	Login User	Login User
XMT900	Viewer	Viewer
	General User	General User
	SIL User	SIL User
	Service	Service
	Factory	Factory
XMT910	Viewer	Viewer
	General User	General User
	Service	Service
	Factory	Factory
XMT1000	Viewer	Viewer
	Operator	Operator
	Admin	Admin
	Factory	Factory

Use the drop-down list and click on the appropriate access level, enter the password, and click **Change Access** Level.

Important: A user with higher access level has access to all the variables and ability to change their values that are accessible to lower access levels irrespective of color code. For example, user with Factory access level can access variables that are accessible by Admin, Operator, General User, etc.

If necessary, click the **Disconnect from Instrument** to stop the connection between **Vitality**[™] and the instrument. You can then check the connection parameters and click Connect to Instrument to re-establish the connection.

Instrument Operations

Configure

The **Configure** menu allows a user to view and/or edit configuration parameters of a selected flowmeter. The changes that are successfully **Committed/Saved** to meter will be saved to the meter and updated in other screens (like Monitor, Signals etc.) of the **Vitality**[™]. If any user wants to edit the parameter variables, user must have appropriate access level that matches the color of the parameter variable field. Please note that the user with access level **Viewer**, can only view the parameter variables or download the current configuration with the help of **Save site files**.

Notit Out Notit Open CM bard Type Q NONE Depen CM bard Type Q NONE Bard Mate Q NONE Propen Control Q NONE Pro	
With we way yee With we way Since Alexes way With we way Since Construction With we way	
average 0 11500 field over prevention 0 000 field over prevention 0 000 <th></th>	
Page 20 mm mm <t< th=""><th></th></t<>	
Byte Constraint Image: Constraint of the Constraint of t	
And Mare Bislay Support Bislay Support Bislay Support Constructions Revision Bislay Support Support Support Bislay Support	
Bit Bit <td></td>	
Name Tay Indicate Service Image: Service Service From Service Image: Service Service Service Service Image: Service Service Service Service Image: Service Service Main Registre Service Image: Service Service Main Registre Service Image: Service Service Main Registre Service Image: Service Servic	
Main Main Main Main Main	
Number installions fipse	
Commutation (Muta) Sing Bits Sing Bits Actions Actions Main Digital Chaput Main Digital Chaput Main Digital Chaput Page Page Page Page Instrumenton Bits Digital Chaput Bits Digital Chaput Page Page Instrumenton Bits Digital Chaput Bits Dits Digital Chaput <td< td=""><td></td></td<>	
Parky	
Sing in a Image: Sing in a i	
Address Ovala Bis Ovala Disk Mich Digital Chapust Mich Digital Chapust Pipe Pipe <td></td>	
Wait Names Image: State	
with Nation	
Main Digital Codyust Main Digital Codyust Main Digital Codyust Main Digital Codyust Prevent Prevent Main Digital Codyust	
Main Digital Cotput Main Digital Cotput Pipe Pipe Pipe Main Digital Cotput Pipe Pipe Main Digital Cotput Main	
Mikin bişki Kaşuk Tişk Pişe Pişe Mail Tiskanısı Pişe Mail Tiskanısı Pişe Mail Tiskanısı Pişe Mail Tiskanısı Pişe Mail Tiskanısı Pişe Mail Tiskanısı Recerce Density Saab Carle Columbia Carles Pişe Mail Tiskanısı Pişe Mail Tiskanıs	
Pie Pie Pie Mail Trians mm Pie Mail Trians mm Reference Damage dial Reference Damagee dial <t< td=""><td></td></t<>	
Pipe Mine Diverset (b) mm Pipe Inter Diverset (b) mm Brown daw diverset (b) Fund type diverset (b) Providered diverset (b) Brown daw diverset (b) Adv ALUES Self Confliction Metting Restricted Confliction Metting Restricte Confliction Metting CARCIL Confliction Affine Metting	
Pipe inter Clameter (D) mm Pipe inter Clameter (D) mm Field International Viscosity Extension Viscosity edit Extension Viscosity kg/m Extension Viscosity kg/m Tracking Mach International Viscosity Path Path Tracking AD VALUES SAME COMING TO METIR MISTOR COMING TO METIR MISTORE COMINGS ONED SETTINGS EXERCISE ACCOMING TO METIR MISTORE COMINGS ONED SETTINGS AD VALUES SAME COMING TO METIR	
Nukl Immunde Vacandy edit Kentensky Kejmail Kentensky Kejmail Static Centry Kejmail Texting Immunde Vacandy Fach Immunde Vacandy Transitions Immunde Vacandy Sket Control on D METIR RESTORE COMMASSIONED SETTINGS CAVELICS CAVELICS INFORMATION CAVELICS CAVELICS INFORMATION	
Minimute Vasualy cf Minimute Vasualy cf Reference Density kg/m² State Density kg/m² True Type Participart True Type Advisor	
Reference Dendry Kg/m State Densry Kg/m Tracky Mode Image: State Densry Provideren Image: State Densry Provideren Image: State Densry AD VALUES Skrt CAMIG TO METER MISTOR COMMISSIONED SETTINGS RESTORE FACILITIES	
Filed Type Image: State State Control To Methy Image: State	
Park To Tourise AD VALUES SALE COMING TO METER RESTORE COMMASSIONED SETTINGS RESTORE MATCHING TO METER SALE COMING TO METER RESTORE COMMASSIONED SETTINGS RESTORE MATCHING TO METER SALE COMING TO METER	
TO Townshines	
LAD VALUES SAVE COMPLIC TO METER RESTORE COMMOSCINED SETTINGS RESTORE LACIDITY SETTINGS CAVELE COMEXUMATION LOAD SITE FILE SAVE STE FILE	
AD VALUES SAVE COMPOSITION RETURE RESIDUE COMPOSITIONS RESIDUE LACTORY STITULES CARELICOMPOSITION LOAD STITULE CARE STILLE	
AD VALUES SAVE COMPLIE TO METER RESTORE COMMISSIONED SETTINGS RESTORE FACTORY SETTINGS CANCEL CONFICURATION LOAD SITE FILE SAVE SITE FILE	
any 14, JUN 462201 MAY Channel & Reported from SNR [1 - 1 mm) any 14, JUN 462201 MAY Channel & Reported from SNR [1 - 1 mm) any 14, JUN 462201 MAY Channel & Reported from SNR [1 - 1 mm) any 14, JUN 462201 MAY Channel & Reported from SNR [1 - 1 mm) any 14, JUN 462201 MAY Channel & Reported from SNR [1 - 1 mm) any 14, JUN 462201 MAY Channel & Reported from SNR [1 - 1 mm) any 14, JUN 462201 MAY Channel & Reported from SNR [1 - 1 mm) any 14, JUN 462201 MAY Channel & Reported from SNR [1 - 1 mm) any 14, JUN 462201 MAY Channel & Reported from SNR [1 - 1 mm) any 14, JUN 462201 MAY Channel & Reported from SNR [1 - 1 mm) any 14, JUN 462201 MAY Channel & Reported from SNR [1 - 1 mm) any 14, JUN 462201 MAY Channel & Reported from SNR [1 - 1 mm) any 14, JUN 462201 MAY Channel & Reported from SNR [1 - 1 mm) any 14, JUN 462201 MAY Channel & Reported from SNR [1 - 1 mm) any 14, JUN 462201 MAY Channel & Reported from SNR [1 - 1 mm) any 14, JUN 462201 MAY Channel & Reported from SNR [1 - 1 mm) any 14, JUN 462201 MAY Channel & Reported from SNR [1 - 1 mm) any 14, JUN 462201 MAY Channel & Reported from SNR [1 - 1 mm] any 14, JUN 462201 MAY Channel & Reported from SNR [1 - 1 mm] any 14, JUN 462201 MAY Channel & Reported from SNR [1 - 1 mm] any 14, JUN 462201 MAY Channel & Reported from SNR [1 - 1 mm] any 14, JUN 462201 MAY Channel & Reported from SNR [1 - 1 mm] any 14, JUN 462201 MAY Channel & Reported from SNR [1 - 1 mm] any 14, JUN 462201 MAY Channel & Reported from SNR [1 - 1 mm] any 14, JUN 462201 MAY Channel & Reported from SNR [1 - 1 mm] any 14, JUN 462201 MAY Channel & Reported from SNR [1 - 1 mm] any 14, JUN 462201 MAY Channel & Reported from SNR [1 - 1 mm] any 14, JUN 462201 MAY Channel & Reported from SNR [1 - 1 mm] any 14, JUN 462201 MAY Channel & Reported from SNR [1 - 1 mm] any 14, JUN 462201 MAY Channel & Reported from SNR [1 - 1 mm] any 14, JUN 462201 MAY Channel & Reported from SNR [1 - 1 mm] any 14, JUN 462201 MAY Channel & Reported from SNR [1 - 1 mm]	

Note: A user at any access level can view all the parameter variable values.

The operations involved to view and/or modify parameter variables are different for SIL (XMT900) and Non-SIL (AT600, XMT910, XMT1000) Meters.

If any changes made to Path Configuration are successfully Committed/Saved to Meter, the same information and related variables will be dynamically updated and/or available in other screens (like Monitor, Signals etc.) of the Vitality[™].

For LC XMT1000 v.4.3.8 and newer, any change made in Configuration parameters will dynamically update the dependent variables even before saving to meter.

SIL Meters:

- 1. Click **Configure** menu and open the list of variable for each parameter (Composite, Channel 1, 2 or 3, SIL Analog Output A, Analog Output B, and Digital Output C or D).
- 2. Using **checkboxes**, select all the variables you want to view/modify (use **check all** or **uncheck all** buttons to select/deselect all the variables at one click). The selected variables appear on the same window as shown in the figure below.

	2			
	2			
m/s 🖌	0.5			
mm	90.			
kg/m²				
m*/s				
m/s				
m/s				
m/s				
kg/m²				
mm 🗌				
mm				
kg/s				
kg/s				
Hz				
HE				
	Higher Higher	Image: Second	Image: state in the state i	Image:

NOTE: If required, user can also change the Unit (eg. m/s) of a variable.

- 3. Click the **Read Values** on the lower left corner of the window to display the current **value**(s).
- 4. If you want to edit/modify the variables, click **Edit**. This will now show the field **New value** in which user can enter valid new value.

Note: Login to the correct access level to modify/edit the variables. Make sure the access level color identification matches the parameters/variables field color.

	₩ MONITOR 😤 SIGNALS 🧮 INTERNAL	LOGS CAL-TRIM-TEST		
CHECKALL			VIEW EDIT	All selected variables must be confirmed in order to a
VARIABLE	UNIT VALUE	NEW VALUE	READ BACK CONFIRM	
Path Configuration		0 2: Two Path Diameter	~ <mark>2</mark> √	
Parity		2 1:8 Odd	· 1	
Tau Value	s 🖌	0.04	0.05 0.05	
Chonnel 1 Transmit Delay	ms 🗸	1.	2. 2.	
Channel 1				
Channel 1 Time in Wedge	ps 🗌			
Channel 1 Path Length	mm			
Channel 1 Axial Length	mm			
Channel 1 Chord Weight Factor				

- 5. Enter/Select a valid new value or select site file (use **Load site file**) if you have previously saved all the configured values in a file.
- 6. After entering a new value or selecting site file, click **Write** so that the new value will be written in and read back to the user (see the **Read back** field). Make sure that the entered values are valid, otherwise the system will display an error as shown.

UNERVALE ONCHERVALE			VEW EDT	All selected variables must be confirmed in ord
VARIANCE Path Configuration Path Configuration Trav Value Page Outer constant Page Outer constant Comparison	INIT VALUE	NOM VALUE 2 </th <th></th> <th></th>		
READVALINS WITT COPPORT	Sur to currence and the to the		RESTORE FACTORY RETTORS	NO STEFEE

7. Select/Confirm all the variables using **checkboxes** and click **Commit**.

Important: You cannot Commit only few of the initially selected variables. If you want to commit only some, uncheck the unwanted variables using checkboxes next to the filled UNIT, or click CANCEL CONFIGURATION and repeat the procedure for only the variables you actually wish to change.

ECK ALL UNCHECK ALL			VIEW	All selected variables must be confirmed in ord
VARIABLE	UNIT	VALUE NEW VALUE	READ BACK CONFIRM	
Path Configuration	Image: A start and a start	0: Single Path Diameter	· · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · ·	
Parity	V	2 1:8 Odd	· 1 🗸	
Zero Cutoff	m/s 🗸	0.5	0.4 0.4	
Pipe Inner Diameter	mm 🗸	90.	91. 91.	
Composite		L		
Soud Rote				
Stop Bits				
Meter Address				
Bits Per Character				
Termination				
Meter Tog				
Long Tag				
Static Density	kg/m²			
Kinematic Viscosity	m²/s			
Tau Value				
Velocity Low Limit	m/s		Continuetos	
Velocity rligh Limit	m/s		Continuetion	
Velocity warning Low Limit	m/s			
Defenses Danith	in/s		Are you sure to commit to active?	
Donner Detected Stote	- Kgym-			
Path Error Handling				
Pipe Outer Diameter	mm		Yes No	
Pipe Woll Thickness	mm			
Acceleration Limit				
Amplitude Discriminator Min				
Amplitude Discriminator Max				
Colibration Factor				
Frequency Output Type Selection				
Frequency Output Base Value	kg/s			
Frequency Output Span Value	kg/s			
Base Frequency	Hz			
Span Frequency	Hz			
Frequency Output Command Selection				
Test Frequency For Frequency Output	Hz			
Correlation Peak Low Limit				

8. The system will prompt to confirm before making changes. Select **Yes**, so that the new values will be written to the working memory of Flowmeter and dynamically displayed to user.

ERATIO	NS 🧊 DISCONNECT	11 MONITOR	-	lignals	INTERNAL LOGS	CAL-TRIM-TEST			
СН	IECK ALL UNCHECK A				VIEW	EDIT		All sch	acted variables must be confirmed in order to comm
	VARIABLE	UNIT		VAI		NEW VALUE		READ BACK	CONFIRM
	Static Density		lb/in*	7	0.33986		0.33986	0.33986	
	Kinematic Viscosity		m²/s	V	0.000051012		0.000051011	0.000051011	
	Zero Cutoff		m/s	v	0.4		0.5	0.5	
Œ	Composite								
Œ	Channel 1				Confirmation	×			
Œ	SIL Analog Output A								
Œ	Anolog Output B				Are you sure to co	mmit to active?			
Œ	Digital Output C				Yes	No			

9. If you do not want to save the new values to the instrument, click on **Cancel Configuration**.

Important: The user access level will be changed to Viewer every successful COMMIT or CANCEL CONFIGURATION operation.

Non-SIL Meters

- 1. Click the **Configure** menu and open the list of variable for each parameter (Composite, Channel 1, 2 or 3, SIL Analog Output A, Analog Output B, and Digital Output C or D).
- Using checkboxes, select all the variables you want to view/modify (use check all or uncheck all to select/deselect all the variables or Retrieve Selection at one click). The selected variables appear on the same window as shown in the figure above.



- 3. Click the **Read Values** on the lower left corner of the window to display the current value.
- 4. If you want to edit/modify the variables, click **Edit**. This will now show the field **New value** in which user can enter/select valid new value. User can also change the *Unit* (eg. m/s) of a variable if required.

VARIABLE Option COM Board Type Option I/O Board Type Baud Rate Pipe Outer Dameter (OD) Bewedet Connection		NEW VALUE NON 1: HART NON 2: AO-AO-AI-R-100-3W 11520 1: 4600 110	* * 105		
About Meter Communications (Meter)					
Main Analog Output HART Analog Output Main Digital Output					
Analog Input (52:3) RTD Input (52:4) Analog Output (52:0)					
Analog Output (S2:2)					
F) Fluid F) Path F) Transducer					
Tw Treat Tre					
Signal and Advanced Setup Temperature and Pressure					
AD VALUES SAVE CONFIG TO METER	RESTORE COMMISSIONED SETTINGS	RESTORE FACTORY SETTINGS CAN	21 CONFIGURATION LOAD SITE FILE	SAVE STIE FLE	

5. Enter a valid new value or select the value from the drop down or select a site file (use **Load site file** button) if you have previously saved all the configured values in a file.

Note: For XMT1000 LC (Liquid Clamp-on): When a user selects the new value from the dropdown, only the applicable variables/parameters will be displayed on the screen. Please see the example below.

Example: If a user selects Meter Installation Type as "Clamp-on" to "Wetted", only the applicable variables are displayed under Pipe parameter.

	UNCHECK ALL SAVE SELECTIC					
	VARIABLE	UNIT	VALUE	NEW	VALUE	
	Meter Installation Type			Clamp-O	mp-On	
+	About Meter					
+	Communications (Meter)					
Ŧ	Main Analog Output					
	Main Dinital Output					
Ŧ				-		
	Pipe			Variables whe	n selected Clamp-Or	n
	Pipe Outer Diameter (OD)	İ				
	Pipe Wall Thickness	i i				
	Pipe Material					
	Lining Material					
	Elining Material	↓				
	Ening Material	¥				
TION		MONITOR 🔶	SIGNALS I	INTERNAL LOGS	L-TRIM-TEST	
TION				INTERNAL LOGS	L-TRIM-TEST	
TION	Pipe Material Lining Material Eluda NS O DISCONNECT O CONFIGURE ECK ALL UNCHECK ALL SAVE SELECTION			INTERNAL LOGS 🛛 🖸 CA	L-TRIM-TEST	IEW
ATION	Ining Material Et.dd NS O DISCONNECT CONFIGURE CK ALL UNCHECK ALL SAVE SELECTION	MONITOR RETRIEVE SELEC	SIGNALS I	INTERNAL LOGS 🛛 🔁 CA	L-TRIM-TEST	IEW
ATION	Pipe matchai Lining Material Et.d.d NS O DISCONNECT OC CONFIGURE	MONITOR SELEC		INTERNAL LOGS	I-TRIM-TEST	IEW
ATION CHI	Pipe Material Lining Material Et.d.d NS O DISCONNECT O CONFIGURE ECK ALL UNCHECK ALL SAVE SELECTION VARIABLE			INTERNAL LOGS	L-TRIM-TEST	IEW
ATION CHI	Procental Fried Material Lining Material Ethed NS O DISCONNECT CONFIGURE 44 ECK ALL UNCHECK ALL SAVE SELECTION VARIABLE Meter Installation Type		SIGNALS :=	INTERNAL LOGS	L-TRIM-TEST	IEW
	Pipe Material Lining Material EL.dd NS O DISCONNECT OC CONFIGURE FCK ALL UNCHECK ALL SAVE SELECTION VARIABLE VARIABLE Meter Installation Type About Meter			INTERNAL LOGS	L-TRIM-TEST	IEW
	Procentalian Lining Material El.d.d NS O DISCONNECT OCONFIGURE 44 ECK ALL UNCHECK ALL SAVE SELECTION VARIABLE Meter Installation Type About Meter Communications (Meter)			INTERNAL LOGS	L-TRIM-TEST	IEW
	Pipe Material Lining Material Et.dd NS DISCONNECT CONFIGURE CONFIGURE VARIABLE VARIABLE Meter Installation Type About Meter Communications (Meter) Main Analog Output		SIGNALS :	INTERNAL LOGS	L-TRIM-TEST	IEW
	Pipe Material Lining Material Lining Material Lining Material Linid Valiable VARIABLE Meter Installation Type About Meter Communications (Meter) Main Analog Output Main Digital Output			INTERNAL LOGS	L-TRIM-TEST	IEW
	Pipe Material Lining Material Et.dd NS DISCONNECT CONFIGURE ONFIGURE CONFIG		SIGNALS E	INTERNAL LOGS CA	L-TRIM-TEST	IEW
	Pipe Material Lining Material Et.d.d NS DISCONNECT CONFIGURE LINING DISCONNECT CONFIGURE LINING INING LINING LINING LINI			INTERNAL LOGS CA NEW VALUE Clamp: Dn 0: Wetted Variables when a	L-TRIM-TEST	IEW

6. After entering/selecting a new value or selecting site file, click **Save Config to Meter**. Ensure that the entered values are valid, otherwise the system will display an error as shown.

iption COM Board Type bitton //D Savid Type audit Brain Ge Coller Dameter (ADD) synolicit Connection board Mictor communicationes (Mater)		NON 1: HART NON 2: AO-AD-AI-R-100-3W 115200 1: 4800 110 O-	* * 105		
option (/D Board Type aud Rate ge Outer Dameter (OD) eynolds Correction board Mcter board Mcter		NONE (2: AC-AD-AL-R-100-3W 115200 (1: 4800 110	* * 105		
aud Rate ge Outer Diameter (00) eynold Correction bout Meter memoriselines (Matas)		115200 1: 4800 110 04	* 105		
ige Outer Diameter (OD) eynolds Correction bout Motor	mm 🖌	04	105		
bout Meter		U.S.			
acour meter					
nemerousications (Matas)					
announcedories (merce)					
lain Analog Output					
ART Analog Output					
lain Digitol Output					
inalog Input (S2:3)					
TD Input (S2:4)					
nalog Output (S2:1)					
nalog Output (S2:2)					
ine					
and a second sec					
am					
ansducer					
N					
rror Limits					
Ignal and Advanced Setup					
interestant and Descents					

Note: Login to the correct access level to modify/edit the variables. Make sure the access level color identification matches the parameter variable field color.

7. For some variables like path configuration, the system will prompt to confirm before making changes. Select **Yes**, so that the new values will be written to the working memory of Flowmeter and displayed to user.

							-	
VARIABLE	UNIT	VALUE		NEW VALUE				
Moter Tag		v	XMT1000		XMT1000		_	
Boud Rate		2	6	5:57600	÷			
Path Configuration		7	0	2: Two Poth Mid Rodius	w.,			
Pipe Outer Digmeter (OD)	in		4,530709		4.330710			
Merer								
Display Language								
Long Tog								
Optional Communication Board Type								
Optional VO Board Type								
Flow Board Parte Mercine Revision								
Flow Boord Sendi Number								
Flow Board Receiver Serial Number								
System Seriel Number								
Sensor 1 Up Serial Number								
Sensor 1 Down Serial Number				1000				
Buffer 1 Up Serial Number				An effective Referit			~	
Buffer 1 Down Serial Number				Application (energy				
Communication							_	
Pority				Updating Path config	iration will cause a	a critical change in number of channels.	_	
Stop Pits		-		Do you want to proce	ed?		_	
Mater Address		H					_	
Dife Des Character		8				1 m m		
Termination		8				Yes No		
Cheed Meanwayset and Cland		<u> </u>						
Choro, Pedsarement and signal								
Tw								
Pipe/Lining								
Pipe Wall Thickness	0							
Pipe Inner Digmeter (ID)	0							
		-						
Pipe Moterial								

Important: For XMT1000 LC (Liquid Clamp-on): If you change Channel 1 Spacing variable value, the system will prompt an alert confirming the automatic changes on other related variables. Select OK to confirm the changes or Cancel to retain the old value.

VARIABLE	UNIT	VALUE	NEW VALUE				
Meter Installation Type		2	Clamp-On 1: Clamp-Or	n (
Channel 1 Spacing		n 🗹	2.716536	2.716535			
About Meter							
Communications (Meter)							
Wain Analos Dutred							
Main Digital Output							
E Pipe							
Pipe Outer Diameter (OD)		in 🗆					
Pipe Wall Thickness							
Pipe Inner Diameter (IU)						-	
Loope Material				Transducer Spacing Alert	2	×	
Contraction in the second seco							
(+) Fhaid				Based on the configuration	changes selected:		
F Path				Channel 1 Transducer's phy	sical Spacing should be adjusted to		
				2.716535 in			
				Channel 2 Transducer's phy 4 133950 in	sical Spacing should be adjusted to		
Channel 1 Iransducer Type				125020 H			
Channel 1 Iransducer Number				Channel 3 Transducer's phy 4 122959 in	sical Spacing should be adjusted to		
Channel 1 humber of inaverses				4 (3) (3) (1)			
Channel 2 Transdurer Number		1					
Channel 2 Number of Traverses							
Channel 2 Spacing					UK Cancel		
Channel 3 Transducer Type		i i i		1.16			
Channel 3 Transducer Number							
Channel 3 Number of Traverses							
Channel 3 Spacing							
Tw .							
F Error Limits							
Signal and Advanced Setup							
Temperature and Pressure							
Input Source							
F Row Calibration							

8. If you do not want to save the new values to the instrument, click on **Cancel Configuration**.

Important:

For all meters except XMT1000 LC, the user access level will be changed to VIEWER every successful Save config to meter or Cancel Configuration operation

For XMT1000LC, the user access level will be changed to VIEWER only on clicking Ctrl + Save Config to Meter or Cancel Configuration operation

Note: Use **Check All** and **Uncheck All** buttons to select or deselect all the variables at once. Deselected variables will move to their actual position on the screen.

If a Service or Factory level is reached, **Commit to Commissioning/Factory** and **Restore to Commissioning/Factory** will be available. If the **Restore to** function is used, the values must be committed in order for them to be used in the working memory in the Flowmeter, or you can commit the values in Commissioning memory or Factory memory. Only for XMT900 (SIL meter). For LC meters, if a user clicks **Restore factory settings/Restore commissioned settings**, below warning message will be displayed. Click **OK** to continue restore settings.



User can also save all the values of the parameters of the flowmeter in file (excel) for later use. Click on **Save** site file and select a location to save and name the file.

Monitor

The **Data Monitoring** option allows a user to view and/or log flowmeter real-time measurements. After clicking **Monitor**, the window presents a drop-down list of variables for each parameter (composite or channel) so that user can choose the variables for graphing and/or logging.

at 1second · Number of Data Points:				
CK ALL LOGS UNCHECK ALL SAVE SE	LECTION RETRIEVE SELECTION			
Compañía	LOG GRAPH VALUE MIN MAX			
Valority (m(d)				
Volumetric (khhl/min)	7 7			
Mass Flow (ka/s)				
Forward Betch Totals (Mbbi)				
Reverse Botch Totals (Mbbl)				
Net Batch Totals (Mbbi)				
Totalizer Time (s)				
Sound Speed (m/s)				
Current Correction Factor				
Current Reynold Number				
Current Operating Temperature (K)				
Standard Volumetric (SL/min)	V V			
SIL Analog Output Drive Current (mA)				
SIL Analog Output Monitored Current (mA)				
Inventory Forward (Mbbl)				
Inventory Reverse (Mobil				
Inventory Net (Mobil)				
inventory time tooy				
Channel 1				

1. Click on each parameter (composite or channel) to expand and select the variables as needed using Checkboxes (use **check all** or **uncheck all** buttons to select/deselect all the variables or **Retrieve Selection** at one click).

NOTE: User can only select up to 10 parameter variables to view the Graph.

2. User can also select **time interval** (1, 5, 10 or 30 seconds; 1, 5, 15 or 30 minutes; or 1 hour) or **Number of data points** (50, 100, 150, and 200) if required. Use the dropdown list available on the upper left corner of the window.

NOTE: It may take longer to monitor multiple items than selected interval based on a number of items and communications baud rate.

MENU	I OPTIONS	🕐 HELP 🚺	ABOUT				
PERATIONS		ONFIGUR	E 11	MONITOR	🤶 SIGNAL	s 📔 INT	TERNAL LOGS
		-					
Interval:	10 second 👻 N	umber of Data Point	s: 50	~			
CHECK A	1 second	ECK ALL SAVE	SELECTION	RETRIEV	E SELECTION		
100	2 seconds		1.000				
VA	10 seconds		LOG	GRAPH VA		N M	AX
E Co	30 seconds						
Velo	1 minute						
Vol	5 minutes						
Sta	15 minutes	(BBLD)					
Mas	s 1 hour						
Ray	v Velocitu (ft/s)						
Ave	rage Volumetric Ek	w Pate (aal/min)					
Sou	ind Speed (ft/c)	w nace (gai/min/	V				
Sta	nd speed (14's)	Coundroad					
Stu	hadra Deviation or	soundspeed	✓	<u> </u>			
Met	ter Factor		✓				
Rey	Inolds K-Factor		\checkmark				
Rey	nolds Number		\checkmark				
Cur	rent Operating Ten	nperature (°F)	\checkmark				
Live	Viscosity (ft²/s)		\checkmark				

NOTE: The interval selection of monitoring log will be disabled/enabled based on the time taken to poll the selected registers for log or graph.

- 3. User can modify the Unit (eg. m/s) of a variable if required.
- 4. After successfully selecting the variables, click on **Start** to begin the Log and Graph.

LOG

1. If user preferred to **log the data**, **Vitality**[™] asks to save the file (CSV) first. The user can either select a desired location or default location will be: <u>C:\GEData\Vitality\MonitoringLogFiles</u>.

VARIABLE LOG GRAPH VALUE MIN MAX		
Composite		
Velocity im/si 🖉 🗌		
Volumetric (kbbl/min) 🗸 🖌		
Mass Flow (kg/s)		
Forward Batch Totals (Mbbl) 🗹 🗹		
Reverse Botch Totols (Mbbl)		
Net Batch Totals (Mbbi)		
Totalizer Time (s)		
Sound Speed (m/s)		
Current Correction Factor		
Current Reynold Number		
Current Operating Temperature (K)	🖾 Save As 🛛 🗙	
Standard Volumetric (SL/min)		
SiL Analog Output Drive Current (mA)	← → · ↑ « Withinfy > MonitoringLogines ∨ 0 Search MonitoringLogines p	
Sic Analog Output Monitorea Current (m/n)	Organize - Newfolder 🔃 - 👔	
	Name Date modified Two	
Inventory Neverse (Hobb)	★ Quick access	
	Documents of Documents	
Channel 1		
	Dave as type (CVVFIIes (*.CSV)	
	A Filde Folders	

2. Click **Monitoring Data** on left corner of the window to view the log data while running. The log information is only displayed with time stamped for each event but not stored. If you want see all the stored log data, **Stop** the Log and click the link **Monitoring Data** to know how to view all the log data.

VITIONS 🕼 disconnect 🔅 compagnet 👫 nonstor 😤 signals 🧮 inter	NR 1001 C 64.7596.979	
15000 Lector of lode (not: 9 0000000000 2000000000000000000000000000000000000	555 0.57 840 0.64 841 0.64 843 0.64 843 0.64 843 0.64 844 0.44 845 0.55 847 0.55 848 0.64	55 5 54 54 5 54 5 54 5 54 54 5 54 54 5 54 54 5 54 54 5 54 54 54 54 54 54 54 54 54 54 54 54 54 5
SIGP DATA Merany & 2018 42:323 AM1 : Yorkwed Bouch Yorkh = 0.14621 Merany & 2018 42:323 AM1 : York Isoba : Table - 0.1463 Merany & 2018 42:32 AM1 : Yorkwed Table - 0.1463 Merany & 2018 42:32 AM1 : Yorkwed Table - 0.0163 Merany & 2018 42:32 AM1 : Yorkwed Table - 0.01630 Merany & 2018 42:32 AM1 : Standard Yolanschiel - 0.1663 Merany & 2018 42:32 AM1 : Standard Yolanschiel - 0.32 //ma	◆ Vislumenc kestiniel ◆ Forward Bath Totals Piebl ◆ Net Both Totals Siebl ← Bander Vislumenc EL/meil	

NOTE: Expand or collapse MONITORING DATA window at any time for better viewing of Graph while the application is running, or stretch it vertically to view more events.

3. In the **Monitoring Data** window, the data will be displayed with the same color that the variable is assigned for Graph. If required, use the menu item **Options** (upper left corner) to increase the font size of the data displayed on **Monitoring Data** window.



When a user saves Log to Excel (either to default folder C:/GE Data/Vitality/MonitoringLogFiles or users desired location), it appears similar to the screen below:

	₽ 5-		÷						Monit	oringDataL	.og - Excel					T			
F	File	Home	Insert	Page Layout	For	mulas [)ata	Review	View	♀ Tell	me what you	ı want to do			Asł	nokkumarred	ldy Pallapala	∕Q Sha	re
Pa Cli	iste	Calibri B I	U - Ent	11 • A			- ≪ ≣ ≣ AI	Wr Wr Me ignment	ap Text erge & Cente	er + \$	stom • % • Number		Conditional I ormatting ▼ S	ormat as Table ▼ St tyles	Cell yles v	nsert - 2 Delete - (Format - Cells	∑ → AZY ↓ Sort & ✓ Filter → Editin	Find & Select *	~
B	32	•	×v	fx	7:41:50	PM													~
			А			В		с	D	E	F	G	н	I	J	к	L	м	
1 2 3	GE Mea Data Mo Created	suremer onitoring Date: 2/	nt and Contr ; Log /12/2018 7:3	rol Solution 89:46 PM	s														
5	XMT100	0	ar Number.	11110001															
6																			
7	Timesta	imp			▼ Tim	e	-	Velocit 💌	Volume	Mass Fl	Standa	Sound	Meter (🔻	Meter I 🝷	Reynol 💌	Reynol 💌	Current 💌	Standa	-
8	Monday	, Februa	ry 12, 2018	7:39:46 PM		7:39:46	PM	0	0		0	0	0 333	1	0.75	0	39.5		0
9	Monday	, Februa	ry 12, 2018	7:39:51 PM		7:39:51	PM	0	0		0	D	0 334	1	0.75	0	39.5		0
10	Monday	, Februa	ry 12, 2018	7:39:57 PM		7:39:57	PM	0	0		0	0	0 333	1	0.75	0	39.5		0
11	Monday	r, Februa	ry 12, 2018	7:40:02 PM	_	7:40:02	PM	0	0		0)	0 334	1	0.75	0	39.5		0
12	Monday	, Februa	ry 12, 2018	7:40:08 PM		7:40:08	PM	0	0		0)	0 333	1	0.75	0	39.5		0
13	Monday	, Februa	ry 12, 2018	7:40:14 PM		7:40:14	PM	0	0		0)	0 334	1	0.75	0	39.5		0
14	Monday	, Februa	ry 12, 2018	7:40:19 PM		7:40:19	PM	0	0		0)	0 333	1	0.75	0	39.5		0
15	Monday	, Februa	ry 12, 2018	7:40:24 PM		7:40:24	PM	0	0		0)	0 333	1	0.75	0	39.5		0
10	Monday	, Februa	ITY 12, 2018	7:40:29 PM		7:40:29	PIVI	0	0		0	י ר	0 333	1	0.75	0	39.5		0
18	Monday	, rebrua / Fobrua	ny 12, 2018	7:40:34 PM	_	7:40:34	DM	0	0		0	, 1	0 333	1	0.75	0	39.5		
10	< >	0	vernight_Ch	eckAllLogs	- 1 - 1	+		0				: 4	5 554		0.75		35.5	[•

Graph

1. The **Graph** will be displayed on the right-side of the window with a scale on Y-Axis (both right side and left side to the graph) according to number of decimal units, max, min values selected for the graph.

Important: Graph/Scale on Y-Axis for each selected variable will be displayed with a unique color. The color for each parameter is auto-assigned by the system and the same will be displayed on the bottom of the graph for easy reference of the user.



2. Clicking on an individual data point enables you to read the data for that specific point, along with any related errors.



3. If required to modify **time interval** and **Number of data points**, stop the operation, make the changes and then start the operation.

4. Right-clicking on the graph opens the **Axis Annotation** window that allows user to modify the "Number of decimal digits" or set the "maximum and minimum values" for each variable range in the **Auto adjust max** and **Auto adjust min** text boxes.



If the user moves cursor away from the Axis Annotation window, it becomes partially transparent (as shown below), so that user can focus on a particular data point without obstruction.



The below listed controls allow users to focus on particular data on the Graph:

- **Zoom** (Shift + Left Click) lets the user to zoom the information in a selected area.
- Scale (Ctrl + Left Click) lets the user to change the x-axis scale by moving the mouse left or right, or the y-axis scale by moving the mouse up or down.
- Pan (Left Click+Drag Horizontally left or Right) lets the user to view different areas of the graph while zoomed.
- **Reset** (Double Left Click) returns the graph to its original size (zoom and scale).

Save the current selection of variables in order to save time or easy selection when he/she requires later. Click the **Save Selections** to save them to an Excel file. Load this preset list of variables by clicking **Retrieve Selections** and selecting the Excel file. To clear any currently loaded list, click **Uncheck All**.

Signals



This function **Signals** assists a user in retrieving and saving signals data.

In order to retrieve a signal, do the following:

- 1. First click **Retrieve Signals**. A window similar to the one above appears. Note that for SIL meters, only a user with access level "Viewer" can Retrieve the signal, others can only view the previously plotted signals.
- 2. Use the **Signal Type** and **Channel** drop down menus and choose which signals to plot. The drop-down menu options are displayed based on the instrument user selected.



Plot the concatenated up and down signals for Raw/Correlate/Pulse Echo raw **signal types**. The plotted signals and their threshold limits are identified with legends and horizontal threshold limit lines as shown above.

Note: For XMT1000 LC meter, Signal type options are displayed based on the parameter "Tw mode" (enabled or disabled) set in the configure window.



3. If required to save the signal data, click **Save** and select desired file location. The signal data will be saved to an Excel file.

Note: Vitality[™] retrieves signal data in parallel with monitoring data.

Internal Logs

The **Internal Logs** menu assists a user to set-up or retrieve an instrument log. If a log is "In Progress" (currently running), the default selections that appear on the page are the parameters selected for the current running log.

VARIABLE LOGGING UNIT	Log Status Stopped	
Composite	A Log Interval - 5 seconds - a	
□ Velocity	- Seconds -	
□ Volumetric	Log Time: Circular v	
Mass Row	Los will show the too time is instant	
Standard Deviation of Soundspeed	Long win study miles use long units is expinent.	
Batch Fwd Std Volumetric Totals	If Log Time is set to Circular, log will run until stopped.	
Batch Rev Std Volumetric Totals	Instrument Logging programming requires access level of Operator or higher.	
Batch Net Std Volumetric Totals		
Sound Speed		
Meter Cycle Time		
Meter Factor		
Reynolds K-Factor		
Reynolds Number		
Current Operating Temperature		
Standard Volumetric		
Analog Output Drive Current		
Analog Output Monitored Current		
Live Viscosity		
Live Density		
Use Buid Sumb Temperature	-	
Live Return Temperature Value		
Uve Pressure Value		
Raw Velocity		
Average Volumetric Flow Rate		
Composite Totalizer		
Batch Ewd Volumetric Totels		
Batch Rev Volumetric Totals		
Batch Net Volumetric Totals		
		_
RT A Please save log data to a file before starting new log: it will be over written.		6

Users cannot save or export a running log. They must click the **Stop** on the Data Monitoring screen to save or export log. A log cannot be paused. After clicking **Stop**, make sure to export and save (to Excel) the log data before clicking **Start**. Otherwise, clicking **Start** will erase the old log and **Vitality**[™] starts logging newly.

To set up a new log, the user shall stop any running log and select logging variables (up to 25) and set the following parameters (the default selections displayed are from the previously run log):

- Log interval (5, 10, and 30 seconds to 1, 5 and 15 minutes, 1 hour and 1 day).
- Log Time (1 minute, 15 minutes, 1 hour, 6 hours, 1 day, 1 month, 6 months and 1 year).

For log time, users can also set the **Circular** option, in which the log will run continuously until stopped. If the log exceeds the memory size, the oldest logs/readings will be overwritten by the recent logs/readings.

Clicking **Save** will retrieve the instrument log and save in an Excel. User can either save the excel file in a desired location or the default location will be, <u>C:\GEData\Vitality\MonitoringLogFiles</u>. This saved log includes a monitoring log sheet and an error log sheet. The error log contains up to 30 errors recorded by the instrument and multiple diagnostics variables based on the meter type.

Number of records: When the XMIT is logging, it should upgrade this register to show how many records are logged. Currently the monitor log file has a maximum size of 20,000 bytes (5,000 variables) for Modbus specification restriction. So the maximum number of records will vary based on the number of variables to log. The following formula defines the relationship:

Maximum number of records = 5,000 / (2 + Number of variables to log).

E	. 5. ೇ				internalLogXMT1000_LC	- Excel						- ø ×	
File	e Home Insert Page L											kumar 🤉 Share	
Past	Cut Arial Copy - Format Painter B I U Cipboard 5	- 15 - A A - □ - △ - ▲ Font	T = = → → → → Wrap Test → → → → → → → → → → → → → → → → → → →	General - S = % + % 23 Number %	sal Format as g * Table *	Bad Go Explanatory Inp Styles	od Neutral out Linked Cel	Calculation *	Insert Delete Form	That ≥ AutoSum - ⇒ Fill - ⊘ Clear - Edi	AT Provide Find & Find & Filter * Select *		~
A1	* : × ✓ #	5											2
	A	в	с	D	E	F	G	н	J	к	L M	N	i
1			GE Measu	rement and Cont	rol Solutions	3							
2		-•		Instrument Log	1								
3													
4	Created Date: 2/4	/2019 6:00:	33 PM	Instrument Serial Nu	mber: 11110001								
5	XMT1000												
6													
7	Timestamp	E-Error	Velocity (m/s)	Volumetric (m ³ /h)	Mass Flow (kg/h	1)							
8	Friday, November	1 Signal Qua	a 0	0	0								
9	Friday, November	1 Signal Qua	0	0	0								
10	Friday, November	1 Signal Qua	a 0	0	0								
11	Friday, November	1 Signal Qua	a 0	0	0								
12	Friday, November	1 Signal Qua	a 0	0	0								
13	Friday, November	1 Signal Qua	a 0	0	0								
14	Friday, November	1 Signal Qua	0	0	0								
15	Friday, November	1 Signal Qua	a 0	0	0								
16	Friday, November	1 Signal Qua	a 0	0	0								
17	Friday, November	1 Signal Qua	a 0	0	0								
18	Friday, November	1 Signal Qua	0	0	0								
19	Friday, November	1 Signal Qua	0	0	0								
20	Friday, November	1 Signal Qua	0	0	0								
21	Friday, November	1 Signal Qua	0	0	0								
22	Friday, November	1 Signal Qua	0	0	0								
23	Friday, November	1 Signal Qua	0	0	0								
24	Friday, November	1 Signal Qua	a 0	0	0								
25	Friday, November	1 Signal Qua	a 0	0	0								
26	Friday, November	1 Signal Qua	10	0	0								
27	Friday, November	1 Signal Qua	10	U 'o	0								
28	Friday, November	1 Signal Qua	10	U C	U O								
29	Friday, November	1 Signal Qua	10	0	0								
30	-												
31	> Instrument Log	Error Log 🕘					1					Þ	ř

In the same excel file, tab **Error Log** stores the instrument error information. It saves the last 30 error groups, so it is a circular file.

日も・ペード			00 – 0 X
File Home Insert Page Layout Formulas Data Review View 🖓 T			Sathish Udhayakumar 🛛 🞗 Share
	d General - Normal Bad Good Neut	al Calculation	∑ AutoSum - Aw O
Bute		Coll Nate	Fill - Sort & End &
- Format Painter	Center * \$ * % * % * % * % * % * * Formatting * Table *		Clear * Filter - Select -
Clipboard G Font G Alignment	G Number G Styles	Cells	Editing
F33 * : X √ fz			
A C D E	F G H I J	K L	M
1 GE Measurement and Control Solution	S		
2 Enor Log			
4 Created Date: 2/4/2019 6:00:35 PM Instrument Seri	al Number: 11110001		
5 XMT1000			
6 7 Timestamp Communication Err Composite Reporte Health Errors	Channel 1 Reporter Channel 2 Reporter Channel 3 Reporter Main Board Errors Option I/O Error	Velocity Volumetric Ma	ass Flow Sound Speed Meter F
8 Friday, November 11, 1994, 5:42:07 PM		0 m/s 0 m%h 0 k	gh 0 m/s 1
9 Friday, November 11, 1994, 5:42:09 PM		0 m/s 0 m%h 0 k	g/h 0 m/s 1
10 Friday, November 11, 1994, 5:42:11 PM Multi-Channel Accuracy Flow Measurement	SNR (E1 - Error) SNR (E1 - Error)	0 m/s 0 m%h 0 k	g/h 0 m/s 1
11 Friday, November 11, 1994, 5:42:13 PM Multi-Channel Accuracy Flow Measurement	SNR (E1 - Error) SNR (E1 - Error) SNR (E1 - Error)	0 m/s 0 m*/h 0 k	gh 0 m/s 1
12 Friday, November 11, 1994, 5:42:33 PM		0 m/s 0 m ⁴ /h 0 k	gh 0 m/s 1
13 Friday, November 11, 1994, 5:42:36 PM		0 m/s 0 m ⁴ /h 0 k	gh 0 m/s 1
14 Enday, November 11, 1994, 5:42:38 PM		0 m/s 0 m%h 0 k	gh Om/s 1
15 Phoay, November 11, 1994, 5:42:38 PM 16 Endre Mexamber 11, 1994, 5:42:43 DM		0 m/s 0 m/h 0 k	ph Um/s 1
17 Enday, November 11, 1394, 5:42:45 PM		0 m/s 0 m/h 0 k	ah Omis 1
18 Friday, November 11, 1994, 5:42:55 PM		0 m/s 0 m*/h 0 k	ah 0m/s 1
19 Friday, November 11, 1994, 5:42:58 PM		0 m/s 0 m*/h 0 k	ah 0m/s 1
20 Friday, November 11, 1994, 5:43:08 PM		0 m/s 0 m*/h 0 k	gh 0 m/s 1
21 Friday, November 11, 1994, 5:43:10 PM		0 m/s 0 m*/h 0 k	gh 0 m/s 1
22 Friday, November 11, 1994, 5:43:48 PM		0 m/s 0 m*/h 0 k	gh 0 m/s 1
23 Friday, November 11, 1994, 5:43:50 PM		0 m/s 0 m³/h 0 k	gh 0 m/s 1
24 Friday, November 11, 1994, 5:44:19 PM		0 m/s 0 m*/h 0 k	gh 0 m/s 1
25 Friday, November 11, 1994, 5:44:21 PM		0 m/s 0 m*/h 0 k	g/h 0 m/s 1
26 Friday, November 11, 1994, 5:44:58 PM		0 m/s 0 m*/h 0 k	gh 0 m/s 1
27 Friday, November 11, 1994, 5:44:59 PM		0 m/s 0 m/h 0 k	gh 0 m/s 1
20 Friday, November 11, 1394, 5:45:24 PM		0 m/s 0 m/h 0 k	ph Om/s 1
30 Enday November 11, 1994, 5:45:52 PM		Dim/s Dim ^s /b Dik	ah Omis 1
31 Friday, November 11, 1994, 5:45:53 PM		0 m/s 0 m*/h 0 k	ah 0 m/s 1
32 Friday, November 11, 1994, 5:46:17 PM		0 m/s 0 m%h 0 k	oh 0 m/s 1
33 Friday, November 11, 1994, 5:46:22 PM		0 m/s 0 m*/h 0 k	gh 0 m/s 1
34 Friday, November 11, 1994, 5:46:32 PM	Invalid K-Table (E27 - Fault)	0 m/s 0 m ⁴ /h 0 k	gh 0 m/s 1
35 Friday, November 11, 1994, 5:46:32 PM	Invalid K-Table (E27 - Fault)	0 m/s 0 m%h 0 k	gh 0 m/s 1
36 Friday, November 11, 1994, 5:46:33 PM	Invalid K-Table (E27 - Fault)	0 m/s 0 m*/h 0 k	g/h 0 m/s 1
37 Friday, December 31, 1999, 12:00:43 AM		0 m/s 0 m ⁴ /h 0 k	gh 0 m/s 1
38			
39			
41			
42			
43			
44			
45			
Instrument Log Error Log			
Ready			III III - + 102

The instrument should check the master error code every time it appears in the scheduler. If the value is not 0 and has changed from the last time, it logs one error group.

CAL-TRIM-TEST

The **CAL-TRIM-TEST** submenu assists a user with appropriate access levels to calibrate and test flowmeters and control the totalizers.

D Vitality	- • ×
	Per Den son son
COMPERSION COMPANY COMPANY	Cost Cost Table Cost
Main Anding Output Mark Anding Output Mark Anding Output Marketing Processing Marketing Processing Marketing Processing Anone Totalizer Batch Inventory	
	SARE CALIDO MITIR

Note: To run CAL-TRIM-TEST, a user shall have access level of General User or higher.

Based on the instrument type users can calibrate Analog and HART Output, set Digital Output, stop and reset Inventory and Batch totalizers and Run Switch and Watchdog tests. For each test, a set of directions appears on its page to describe the required steps. Most tests require the use of additional electronic test equipment. If the test does not require external equipment, a Pass or Fail indication appears next to the **Start** and see the Error Log for additional information.

After successful completion of Analog or HART calibration, if required, user can click on **Save to Meter** so that the Trim Value will be saved and available for later use.

Important:

For all meters except XMT1000 LC, the user access level will be changed to VIEWER every successful Save Cal to meter.

For XMT1000LC, the user access level will be changed to VIEWER only on clicking Ctrl + Save Cal to Meter.

Note: All the tests are color-coded to indicate the required Access Level.

NOTE: The CAL-TRIM-TEST also supports calibration of Optional IO Board

Speed of sound calibration (SOS)

To perform Speed of Sound (SOS) Calibration, the user requires access level of Operator or higher.

Following are the instruction guidelines for the SOS Calibrations:

- 1. On **Cal-Trim-Test** window, click on **SOS calibration**. A page appears alongside the same window.
- 2. The SOS Calibration is performed differently for both "clamp-on" and "wetted" meter type configuration being set in the Configure screen
- 3. Vitality will constantly poll the composite SOS and Chx SOS in the field **"SOS Measured"** and **SOS Chx** fields respectively. These fields are read-only.
- 4. User will enter the expected SOS in the field "SOS Actual".
- 5. Click "SAVE CAL TO METER" button to perform SOS calibration.

	SPEED OF SOUND CALIBRATION - SOS CALIBRATION de parteming 105 State d'avait Calibration Instrument en la fea variante autores autores de tablese. O Messa end res la tablese. Anticipat de la calibratica de la calibratica de la calibrativa de la ca	
PL FARS SEALEDT THE CALIBRATION/TRIGHTSEI TO RUN	ACTION Speed of Social Station: SOG Actual 4065.33 ft/s SOS Actual 4065.33 ft/s SOS Ch2 4055.33 ft/s SOS Ch2 4055.33 ft/s SOS Ch3 4055.33 ft/s	
	SLOF CAL TO HETER	

Note: SOS Actual input is subject to validation and is expected to be entered within a range defined based on the "Tracking mode" being set either "on" or "off" in the Configuration screen. If the SOS Actual being input is beyond the defined range, then the user is warned with a pop-up message (as shown below) that displays the upper and lower limit (both inclusive) of the user input.

PLEASE SELECT THE CALIBRATION/TRIM/TEST TO RUN			ACTION						
-	peed of Sound Calibration			Speed of Sound Colibration					
	SOS Calibration		SOS Calibration						
	fain Analog Output			4965.329	ft/s		SOS Actual	1670 ft/s	
	4 mA Calibration	A Calibration			ft/s				
	20 mA Colibration	mA Colibration			ft/s				
	Percentage			4965.332	_ft/s				
=	Main Digital Output	SOS Actual		×					
	Pulse								
	Frequency	Entered SOS Actual 1670.00 ft/s m	ust be within range 4599.737 ft/s -						
	Alorm	5200.151105.							
•	Totalizer			ок					
	Batch	1							
	Inventory								
		-							

Error Log

The **Error Log** is at the bottom of the Main Menu screen. When you click on the Error Log, a pane expands and user can see a list of different error events (that are not communicated with the instrument) occurred during the application running. These registered error events are time stamped and color coded as follows:

- Red critical error
- **Yellow** warning/moderate error
- **Black** informational/expected state

ERROR LOG	
Thursday, August 09, 2012 2-07:26 PM : Modbus Error: (Channel error (general): Transaction timeout. The transaction did not complete within the time specified by the Device. Timeout Transaction property.)	
Thursday, August 09, 2012 2:07:26 PM : Modbus Error: (Device error (general): error reading one or more items, check item quality.)	-
Thursday, August 09, 2012 2:07:26 PM : CANNOT CONNECT TO THE INSTRUMENT.	
Thursday, August 09, 2012 2:07:43 PM : CANNOT CONNECT TO THE INSTRUMENT.	
Thursday, August 09, 2012 2:08:19 PM : Modbus Error: (Channel error (general): Transaction timeout. The transaction did not complete within the time specified by the Device. TimeoutTransaction property.)	
Thursday, August 09, 2012 2:08:19 PM : Modbus Error: (Device error (general): error reading one or more items, check item quality.)	
Thursday, August 09, 2012 2:08:19 PM : CANNOT CONNECT TO THE INSTRUMENT.	

If the Error Log pane is closed when an error occurred, the **Error Log** will flash red to notify the user.

Right-click on the log to copy the contents to a text file or clear the error log completely if required.

Default Directories

To store user data, **Vitality**[™] has set up three default folders in the directory C:/GEData/Vitality:



- **Commit History** To store Commit History file which holds changes to meter configuration while performing the Configure menu option.
- DataMonitoringConfigurationFiles To store Monitoring item selection files;
- MonitoringLogFiles To store log files created by Vitality[™].

Users also have the option of saving these files in their desired location. Other files (site files and instrument log files) can be saved in any location the user designates.

Customer Support Centers

U.S.A.

The Boston Center 1100 Technology Park Drive Billerica, MA 01821 U.S.A. Tel: 800 833 9438 (toll-free) 978 437 1000 E-mail: <u>mstechsupport@bakerhughes.com</u>

Ireland

Sensing House Shannon Free Zone East Shannon, County Clare Ireland Tel: +353 61 61470200 E-mail: <u>mstechsupport@bakerhughes.com</u>

Copyright 2021 Baker Hughes company.

This material contains one or more registered trademarks of Baker Hughes Company and its subsidiaries in one or more countries. All third-party product and company names are trademarks of their respective holders.



BH076C11 EN A